
 

Agenda - Finance Committee 

Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 1 - Senedd 

Meeting date: Thursday, 2 February 

2017 

Meeting time: 13.00

For further information contact: 

Bethan Davies 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6372  

SeneddFinance@assembly.wales

1 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Site visit - Lamby Way landfill 

site, Cardiff 

(09.45-12.00)   

2 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of 

interest 

(13.00)   

3 Paper(s) to note 

(13.00) (Pages 1 - 8)  

Welsh Government response to the Finance Committee's Stage 1 Report on the 

Land Transaction Tax and Anti-avoidance of Devolved Taxes (Wales) Bill - 23 

January 2017 

 (Pages 9 - 18)  

Joint letter from the Welsh Government and HMRC on the transition of devolved 

Welsh taxes - 26 January 2017 

 (Pages 19 - 20)  

4 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Evidence session 8 

(13.00-14.45) (Pages 21 - 64)  

 

Mark Drakeford AM, Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government 

Emma Cordingley – Lawyer, Welsh Government 

Sarah Tully – Devolved Tax Policy Project Manager, Welsh Government 

 

Paper 1 - Legal note 

Paper 2 - Summary of Consultation Responses 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



Paper 3 - Supplementary note from Natural Resources Wales following evidence 

session 4 on 19 January 2017  

Paper 4 – Research Briefing – Unauthorised Waste Disposals 

 

5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 

public from the remainder of the meeting 

(14.45)   

6 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Consideration of evidence 

(14.45-15.45) (Pages 65 - 73)  

 

Paper 5 – Note from Daniel Greenberg 

 

7 Public Health (Wales) Bill: Consideration of draft report 

(15.45-16.00) (Pages 74 - 90)  

 

Paper 6 – Financial implications of the Public Health (Wales) Bill - draft report 

 

8 Land Transaction Tax and Anti-avoidance of Devolved Taxes 

(Wales) Bill: Stage 2 Technical Briefing 

(16.00-16.45)   

 

Georgina Haarhoff, Head of Tax Policy & Legislation Development, Welsh 

Government 

Repa Antonio, Land Transaction Tax Project Manager, Welsh Government 

Andrew Hewitt, Land Transaction Tax Policy Manager, Welsh Government 

Mair Hughes, Lawyer, Welsh Government 

 



 

 

Concise Minutes - Finance Committee 

Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 1 - Senedd 

Meeting date: Thursday, 19 January 

2017 

Meeting time: 09.17

This meeting can be viewed  

on Senedd TV at: 

http://senedd.tv/en/3875 

Attendance 

Category Names 

Assembly Members: 

Simon Thomas AM (Chair) 

Mike Hedges AM 

Huw Irranca-Davies AM 

David Rees AM 

Steffan Lewis AM 

Nick Ramsay AM 

Mark Reckless AM 

Witnesses: 

Rebecca Evans AM, Minister for Social Services and Public 

Health 

Chris Tudor-Smith, Welsh Government 

Rhodri Jones, Welsh Government 

Lee Marshall, Local Authority Recycling Advisory Committee 

Brian Mayne, Chartered Institution of Wastes Management 

Clare McCallan, Natural Resources Wales 

Becky Favager, Natural Resources Wales 

Kim Gutteridge, RSPB 

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 3

http://senedd.tv/


Dr Stephen Marsh-Smith, Afonydd Cymru 

Dr Patrick Bishop, UK Environmental Law Association 

James Byrne, Wildlife Trusts Wales 

Committee Staff: 

Bethan Davies (Clerk) 

Catherine Hunt (Second Clerk) 

Georgina Owen (Deputy Clerk) 

Gemma Gifford (Deputy Clerk) 

Christian Tipples (Researcher) 

Helen Jones (Researcher) 

Katie Wyatt (Legal Adviser) 

 

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of interest  

 

1.1 Apologies were received from Eluned Morgan AM. 

 

1.2 The Chair welcomed Huw Irranca-Davies AM who attended as a substitute for 

Eluned Morgan AM. 

 

2 Paper(s) to note  

 

2.1 The papers were noted. 

 

3 Public Health (Wales) Bill: Evidence session  

 

3.1 The Committee took evidence from Rebecca Evans AM, Minister for Social Services 

and Public Health, Chris Tudor-Smith – Senior Responsible Officer, Welsh Government 

and Rhodri Jones – Bill Manager, Welsh Government on the Public Health (Wales) Bill. 

 

Pack Page 2



4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public 

from the remainder of the meeting for the following business:  

 

4.1 The motion was agreed. 

 

5 Public Health (Wales) Bill: Consideration of evidence  

 

5.1 The Committee considered the evidence received.  

 

6 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Evidence Session 3  

 

6.1 The Committee took evidence from Brian Mayne, Ricardo Energy & Environment, 

Regional Director Wales – Resource Efficiency & Waste Management, Chartered 

Institution of Wastes Management and Lee Marshall, Chief Executive Officer, Local 

Authority Recycling Advisory Committee on the Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill.  

 

7 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Evidence Session 4  

 

7.1 The Committee took evidence from Clare McCallan, Landfill Disposals Tax Project 

Manager, Natural Resources Wales and Becky Favager, Waste & Resources Manager - 

Evidence, Policy and Permitting directorate, Natural Resources Wales on the Landfill 

Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill.  

 

7.2 Natural Resources Wales agreed to: 

 

 confirm whether the Memorandum of Understanding between Natural Resources 

Wales and the Welsh Revenue Authority will be made a public document; and 

 provide a note on Landfill sites across Wales with a permit to dispose of 

hazardous waste.  

 

8 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Evidence Session 5  

 

Pack Page 3



8.1 The Committee took evidence from Kim Gutteridge, Head of Grants, High Value 

Fundraising - Planning and Development, RSPB, Dr Stephen Marsh-Smith, Afonydd 

Cymru, Dr Patrick Bishop, Senior Lecturer, College of Law and Criminology, Swansea 

University, UK Environmental Law Association and James Byrne, Living Landscapes 

Manager, Wildlife Trusts Wales on the Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill.  

 

9 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Consideration of evidence  

 

9.1 The Committee considered the evidence received on Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) 

Bill.  

 

10 Correspondence with the Auditor General for Wales: Natural Resources 

Wales  

 

10.1 The Committee considered the correspondence and agreed to write to the Auditor 

General for Wales. 

 

11 Land Transaction Tax and Anti-avoidance of Devolved Taxes (Wales) 

Bill: Order of consideration  

 

11.1 The Committee agreed to follow the following order of consideration for Stage 2 

amendments to the Land Transaction Tax and Anti-avoidance of Devolved Taxes 

(Wales) Bill: 

 

Sections 2-13 

Schedule 2 

Sections 14-17 

Schedule 3 

Section 18 

Schedule 4 

Sections 19-30 

Pack Page 4



Schedules 8-21 

Sections 31-32 

Schedule 5 

Sections 33-40 

Schedule 6 

Section 41 

Schedule 7 

Sections 42-75 

Schedule 22 

Sections 76-80 

Section 1 

Schedule 1 

Long title 

 

12 Financial implications of the Additional Learning Needs and Education 

Tribunal (Wales) Bill  

 

12.1 The Committee considered the financial implications of the Additional Learning 

Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Bill and agreed to invite the Minister for Lifelong 

Learning and Welsh Language in for further scrutiny. 

 

Pack Page 5



 

 

Concise Minutes - Finance Committee 

Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 3 - Senedd 

Meeting date: Wednesday, 25 January 

2017 

Meeting time: 09.31 - 12.09

This meeting can be viewed  

on Senedd TV at: 

http://senedd.tv/en/3876 

Attendance 

Category Names 

Assembly Members: 

Simon Thomas AM (Chair) 

Mike Hedges AM 

Eluned Morgan AM 

Steffan Lewis AM 

Nick Ramsay AM 

Mark Reckless AM 

Witnesses: 

Jacqueline Doone, Biffa Group Limited 

Jennifer Doyle, Cory Environmental 

Gareth Pritchard, Deloitte LLP 

Mike Trotman, Deloitte LLP 

Committee Staff: 

Bethan Davies (Clerk) 

Georgina Owen (Deputy Clerk) 

Martin Jennings (Researcher) 

Helen Jones (Researcher) 

Katie Wyatt (Legal Adviser) 

Gareth Howells (Legal Adviser) 

Pack Page 6

http://senedd.tv/


 

1 Consideration of the Draft Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Bill  

 

1.1 The Committee considered the paper and agreed to invite the Public Services 

Ombudsman for Wales in for further scrutiny. 

 

2 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of interest  

 

2.1 The Chair welcomed Members to the meeting. 

2.2 Apologies were received from David Rees AM. 

 

3 Paper(s) to note  

3.1 Letter from the Secretary of State for Wales - Financial provisions of Wales Act 

2014 - 28 December 2016  

3.1.1 The Committee agreed to write again to the Secretary of State for Wales. 

 

3.2 Letter from the Chair of the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee - A 

stronger voice for Wales: engaging with Westminster and the devolved institutions 

- 17 January 2017  

3.2.1 The paper was noted. 

 

4 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Evidence session 6  

4.1 The Committee took evidence from Mike Trotman, Deloitte LLP and Gareth 

Pritchard, Deloitte LLP. 

 

5 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Evidence session 7  

5.1 The Committee took evidence from Jennifer Doyle, Cory Environmental and 

Jacqueline Doone, Biffa Group Limited.  

 

Pack Page 7



6 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public 

from the remainder of the meeting  

6.1 The motion was agreed. 

 

7 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Consideration of evidence  

7.1 The Committee considered the evidence received. 

 

Pack Page 8



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee 
FIN(5)-04-17 PTN1

Pack Page 9

Agenda Item 3.1



Pack Page 10



Pack Page 11



Pack Page 12



Pack Page 13



Pack Page 14



Pack Page 15



Pack Page 16



Pack Page 17



Pack Page 18



       

 

Simon Thomas AM 

Chair  

Finance Committee 

National Assembly for Wales 

Cardiff Bay 

CF99 1NA 

 

26th January 2017 

 

Devolved Welsh Taxes – Transition from HMRC to Welsh Revenue Authority 

 

Dear Simon,  

 

In response to the Finance Committee’s report on the Land Transaction Tax and Anti-

avoidance of Devolved Taxes (Wales) Bill, we wanted to offer our assurance that the Welsh 

Revenue Authority (WRA) implementation team and HMRC are working together to ensure 

a smooth transition from Stamp Duty Land Tax (SDLT) and Landfill Tax (LfT) to the new 

devolved Welsh taxes, and to develop a joined up compliance regime from 2018. 

 

The Committee has rightly raised the issue of how cross-border land transactions will be 

dealt with following devolution of SDLT.  We expect no more than 30 such transactions per 

year. We have consulted with stakeholders to help us all to understand the key issues and 

the concerns of conveyancing professionals. We are working closely with Land Registry to 

ensure that cross-border transactions can be identified by both tax authorities and that they 

can be identified clearly on Land Registry titles by taxpayers or their agents from April 2018.    

 

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee 
FIN(5)-04-17 PTN2

Pack Page 19

Agenda Item 3.2



HMRC and the WRA implementation team are committed to delivering clear joint guidance 

for those taxpayers and agents who are involved in cross-border transactions, and we are 

confident that both HMRC and WRA can provide a clear and workable solution. HMRC is 

committed to a joint working approach with the WRA and would not seek to change our 

SDLT legislative approach to managing cross-border transactions. 

 

We have also established a joint SDLT and LfT transition project, which met for the first 

time in October last year.  It will meet again in late January to discuss and finalise a joint 

transition plan including shared milestones (which includes I.T. changes, business 

processes, joint communications and taxpayer guidance).  

 

Following the devolution of taxes and the creation of the WRA it is important that we seize 

the opportunity to share data, expertise  and intelligence across UK tax authorities, this will 

ensure a complete view of compliance risks and a robust, integrated approach to dealing 

with them. In a first step towards enabling this cross-government working, a group has been 

established to enable systems and processes in WRA and HMRC to share relevant 

compliance information. 

 

The WRA implementation team and HMRC would be happy to update the Committee on 

progress on dealing with cross-border transactions and data-sharing as our work develops.  

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Dyfed Alsop  

Welsh Revenue Authority Implementation Director 

 

 

Morris Graham 

Deputy Director / Head of Stamps HMRC 

This image cannot currently be displayed.

This image cannot currently be displayed.

Pack Page 20



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 21

Agenda Item 4By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee 

FIN(5)-04-17 P3 

 

Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Supplementary note from Natural 

Resources Wales following evidence session 4 on 19 January 2017  

 

1. Confirm whether the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between 

Natural Resources Wales (NRW) and the Welsh Revenue Authority (WRA) 

will be made a public document.  

Having liaised with Welsh Government colleagues, I am advised that the 

operational MOU between NRW and WRA from April 2018 will be made 

available but the level of detail and in what form has not yet been decided.   

 

2. Provide a note on Landfill sites across Wales with a permit to dispose 

of hazardous waste.  

Biffa Waste Services Limited’s site at Trecatti accepts hazardous waste into a 

separate cell. The waste type is restricted to asbestos waste and it is the only 

landfill that accepts asbestos in Wales.  Bryn Pica in Aberdare and Lamby Way 

in Cardiff are permitted to accept hazardous wastes into a separate cell but 

currently do not.  Tata Steel UK Limited has an in-house landfill that is 

permitted for hazardous waste arising from their own activities.  

  

3. Whether an area subject to fly-tipping could be designated as a non-

disposal area (NDA) and a civil penalty of up to £5k could be levied.  

Having looked at the legislation, Section 54 sets out that an NDA can only be 

designated at an authorised site. So as drafted it cannot be used to take 

action against an unauthorised disposal. Which seems reasonable as there 

will be action that can be taken under existing environmental legislation, and 

the proposed taxation of unauthorised disposals – which fly-tipping would 

be. 

Pack Page 34



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 38

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 65

Agenda Item 6By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 74

Agenda Item 7 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42


	Agenda
	3 Paper(s) to note
	Minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2017

	3.1 Welsh Government response to the Finance Committee's Stage 1 Report on the Land Transaction Tax and Anti-avoidance of Devolved Taxes (Wales) Bill - 23 January 2017
	3.2 Joint letter from the Welsh Government and HMRC on the transition of devolved Welsh taxes - 26 January 2017
	4 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Evidence session 8
	FIN(5)-04-17 P2 - Summary of consultation Responses
	FIN(5)-04-17 P3 - Supplementary note from Natural Resources Wales following evidence session 4 on 19 January 2017
	FIN(5)-04-17 P4 - Research Briefing - Unauthorised Waste Disposals
	Research Brief

	6 Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill: Consideration of evidence
	7 Public Health (Wales) Bill: Consideration of draft report



